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JUDGE PAUL ELWARD.

Joyce Ledger, 084-001292
Official Court Reporter
69 W. Washington, 9th Floor
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JUDGE HENRY: Now, we are going to go until
4:00 o'clock, Judge,ZWhich is the time that Joyce
has allotted and then you will be,1nv1ted back a
second time or a third or a fourth Judge .

. JUDGE ELWARD: Whatever you .want.
-JUﬁGE HENRY : Several judges w-'—AI“hare been

doing Judge Elrod for about a half a year an hour

at a time, you know.

Well, anyway geod afternoon, ~Judge.
JUDGE ELWARD: Thank you,” Judge.
JUDGQ_HENRY: Thank you very much for coming
down. |
I have just recently talked to Judge
Elward about.the scope of our project and Ifjust
want Lo make note that I met his son geveral months
a96 at a retreat sponsored by the Catholic Lawyers
Gulld and we were.assigned to the same dlscu851on
group and I asked him if he was related to Judge
Elward and -- because of the striking resemblance.
JUDGE ELWARD: Thank you, Judge.
JUDGE HENRY: This extraordinarily good looking
guy, I couldn't believe that there were two people
named Elward that were as good looking and his son

did say that he was Exhibit ‘A in the paternity suilt
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and.there was no guestion as tb who the father was.
| So that fortuitous meefing witﬁ Bill

Elward, Juagq Elward's son, resulted in our heiﬁg
here today and .I want to thank you very much for
agreeing tq_garticipate.

JUDGE ELWAﬁb;“ My pleasure.

JUDGE HEﬁRY: Now, we are justdgoing to ao this
dhfonologically; |

JUDGE ELWARb:; Okay.

EJUDGﬁfHENRY:"If you can tell mé you¥-date of
birth and where your‘parents were living when you
were born.

JUDGE ELWARD: I wasg born Aéril 12, 1926, which
means I am 80 today or gpril 19.

We -- I was -- when I 6 was born we - my
parents, I was:the first of two boys in our family
and we lived at 4800 South Wabash Avenue in °
Chicago.

I was born at the 0ld Saint Luke's
Hogpital on socuth --

JUDGE HENRY: Indiana or Michigan?
JUDGE ELWARD: 1Indiana or Michigan, yes. It is
no longer there, but the building is being used for

something else.
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So in 1928 when I was about two aﬁd a half
years old, ﬁ& father and mother moved the féﬁily to‘
Rogers Park and we lived at 6642 North Bosworth
Avenue, across from Sulliﬁan High School, in a
gsingle family house. ;

Shortyy after thg @o;e in the fall of '28,
my brother, Jaﬁes, who ié now dead, was born. |

He was the oﬁlyfsibling I had. There were
no daughters ig_our family, -just my brother”an&
ﬁyself. - |
| JUDGE HENRY: QOkay.

JUDGE ELWARD: And we -- I grew up there in

West Roger Park, East Rogers Park, went to Saint
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Ignatius Grammar School on North Glenwood Avenue.

We attended Saint Ignatius Church, Walked
to school each day and graduated from there in
1938, from the grammar school.

I then entered Loyola Academy which was

then on the campus of Loyola University which it's

down in Wilmette and I attended Loyola Academy from
138 to '42 when I graduated.

Then in '42 I entered Loyola University as
a freshman on the same campus until July of '44

when I enlisted in the U. 8. Navy for World War IT,
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served in the navy frdm July of '44 to March of
'46, no service outside of the'United States, but
wéntithrough basic training, signalman school and
wouna up eventually getting discharged on the west
éoésp after the Japanese collapsed,ig the summer of
‘45? . .
l&UDGE HENRY: ©Now whaﬁlwere youfxfirst memoxries
ags a4 young boy?
 =mDo you remembqr 1iving on theisouth side
“§r were you Loo young? . R
JUDGE ELWARD: No, no, I have no recollection
of that &t all.
| JUDGE HENRY: Do yoﬁ remember what prompted
your parents to move from the beautiful south §}de?
JUDGE ELWARD: My ,mother's mother, my
grandmother was not in too good a health and the
place she was living in they felt was just too much
for hér.
So she moved with us to the north side
intc an apartment building on Newguard Avenue, a
few blocks away from our home on Bosworth where she
could be closer.
My dgrandmother was a widow. She had a --

two daughters.: OCne was my mother and another
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daughterx whq_never got married, my Aunt Rita, both
of fhem of course have since died, but the éoncern
was that they wamte& to stay close to our family
and vice versa, éo that's -- in fact I can still

remember they woyld always come over for

4

Thanksgiving andlIlwould always be standing in the

living room of our house on Bosworth lboking dowﬁ
the street and m§ QOther would have to remind me
that l;oking for the to arrive wasn‘tfgoing'to
hurry them up at all. - : : . e
JUDGE HENRY: A watched pot never boils.
JUDGE ELWARD:{rYéQi exactly.
JUDGE HENRY: That adage.

JUDGE ELWARD: -So my grandmother died in 1%46

while I was in the Navy and I was .not aware of it

‘at the time and my aunt died many years later.

JUDGE HENRY: Were your grandparents born in
Chicago or were they born --
JUDGE ELWARD: Yesg, right. I never knew a
mother on my fathex's side.
I think she died in the early 1920s. My
fathert's father, I believe, remarriedrin the 20s,
which was not well thought of because he remarried,

I think he remarried somebody who was not a
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Catholic and 6f course in the '20s8 that was a no, -
no.

I never knew him; ge died when I was six
or seven years old in the early '30s. I never knew
his first wife OrzS@COHdVWif?.

My mother's family,.ﬁér%father had been

born around, shortly after the Chicago fire of

1871. He was a refugee frot Germany, fled when

Bismark put in theﬂcompulsory military training for

young people. e

Interestingly enough, came over here in
£he early '60s and served in the“ﬁhion Army during
the civil war énd I went down; I remember oncerﬁith
my parents and if I am going too fast or too slow
yvou slow me. |

We went down once and there's a hall of
flags in Springfield for all of the different
brigadeg and divisions that served in the Army of
the Union during the Civil War and they showed me
his flag. I never knew him; never met him.

He suffered from tuberculosis, went out to
Denver for I think a cure in 1910 or thereabouts
and died out there and left my grandmother a widow.

She never remarried and I never knew him.
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So that takes care of the grandparents.
| JUDGE HENRY: How did you meet.your wife?
JﬁDQE ELWARD: A very good friend.of!mine, a
Dr. Jamés Fitzsimmons was a dentist and he had been
an undquraduate with me at Loyola. :
'._dp'becember.7th of 1952 I was invited by

his wif; to a birthday party for Jim. ££ ﬁas his
birthday. It-was the same as Pearl Harbor, -down on
1120 or 1i5& Lake Shore Dr;ve”and I was wiéh
andther young lady whom I had known=from college
dating days, frbm Mundelein.

We were, I would say ve were fairiy;f
steady, but we were not enéaged and that'é when I
met my future wife, Eileen McGinnis, for the firstﬁ
time. ;

-And very interesting situation, because T
caught "her in the kitchen of the apartment and
asked fo; her phone number and she wouldn't give it
to me. |

She was with somebody else, not going
steady or engaged. She said, "No, you are going to
have to ask the hostess," and the hostess I think
was trying to fix me up with somebody else, but

that didn't work out.
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So a few days later I called the hostess,
Jane Fitzsimmﬁns, Jameg' wife, and shexgave me
Eileen McGinnis' ?hqne‘number. ,
She lived on the far south side, East 74th
Street, 2506, andlsq I called her. That ‘was about
December 10th or 12th€of '52. We had our first
date Deeé%bér 19th-§f that year.
JUDGE HENRY: ~ Where did you go?
JQDGESELWARD: Werwent to a play. 1 ém trying
think of fhe name of it. . e
It was a play downfown. It was a bad play
to take somebody to bécdﬁ%e the husband was
plannihg to kill the wife.
JUDGE HENRY: That's not good.
JUDGE ELWARD: So we gsaw the plavy,.

We had dinner afterwards and then I

already a date with somebody else for New Year's

-Eve, but right after the first of the year we

started, I said dating exclusively and on
February 14th of '53, Valentine's Day, I proposed
and she accepted.

JUDGE HENRY: You are guite a romantic guy,
well, except for that play choice.

JUDGE ELWARD: Well, we were engaged within
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nine weeks of meeting each other which for a
congervative like ﬁé was very,.vexy quick.

{ | We got enéaged outside!thé Adler
-Planetarium. We went to anothef play that night,

ywent out there, parked and I gave her the ring and

lShe accepted.

T think we knew by then that we were in

’ love with each other, but you never know whether

she is going to say yés or no oxr maybe.
"JUDéE'HENRY: Or méybefﬁ*

JUDGE ELWARD: ‘Well, she said, yes, and that
@asv;ébruary of '52_—4"53 and wq-gdgﬂmarried in
September 26th of }53.

JUDGE..HENRY: Did you get married on Ege gsouth
side or the north side?

JUDGE ELWARD: We got married on the south side
at her church, Saint Brides' Church at 78th and
éoles I think it is. It was an iﬁteresting - -

JUDGE HENRY: I wasn't invited to the wedding
by the way.

JUDGE ELWARD: Neo, I don't think you were,.

JUDGE HENRY: I was living in that --

JUDGE ELWARD: The wedding was somewhat unusual

because that summer my mother had driven Eileen and

10
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myself up to Door Coﬁnty for a brief vacation to
chapefone'us and my dad said, "Why doﬁ'ﬁ you stop
in Green‘Bay ahd pay your respects to Biéhop Bona
Stanislaw, B-o-n-a?" |

| \My;dad had for many years had been the
lawyer for thé ﬁolish, Czech and 8lavic cémgﬁéries.
%hey were é<séparate entity. Thef‘were not'ﬁn&er
the archbigshop or the cardinal.

He kﬁew RBishop Bona was a member of ﬁhat
baard,ﬁin fact had taken the man 6Ut te=lunch.

In fact there's a cemetery on the west
part of ChicagofWCook County, that would not be -
there except.for my dad, buriéi cemetery. ﬂ

So we stoppeq,in Green Bay and I
introduced my fiance,ﬂEileenhMcGinnis, to Bishop
Bona and my mother was there who knew the bisghop
and the bishop was big gruff Slavic, a lot like
Johﬁ Paul, II, and of course, "I am happy for you
Paul and I will marry you," and my wife said,
"Well, bishop, that's very kind but I am éfraid
that's not possible.™

Well, you don't tell a bishop 1t's not

possible. He said, "What's wrong?" "Well, our

pastor at Saint Brides'," her church, "Does not

11
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allow anybody from_outside to come in and marry
you, " |

I mean, youngiladies have gotten married
there who had an uncle who was a priest and he
couldn't come in andxdq it, "Oh, well, what's the
problem?™" .

"Monsgignor Friers is our pastor and he

just doesn't allow it.™ "Oh, Tommy Friers, I went
to the seminéry with him. ~There will be no problem
at all.*" | S I ' e

So on the day of, Saiﬁt Brides' is a very
small sanctuary, there was the bishop and another
priest fr&m Loyola and the bishop says I Ehink that
some noses are still out of joingthat we got
married by a bishop.

Of course we went over to what wag then
the Soqth Shore Country Club, it's now park
district, for the weddiﬂg reception.

We sit down to the table for the lunch.
This 1s a Saturday and the bishop turns, I am on
one side, Eileen is on the other and the bishop
splits you. He said, "When you are married by a
bishop, you can never get it annulled.?®

I mean we had just been married for half a

12
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hour. We hadn't consummated aqything and getting
annulled was not exaCEly on the top of our list,
bug a wondexrful man. He is gonernoy. " 80 that was
the story.

: JUDGE HENRY: That "s: quite a_s%ory and then
wheré:did-you decide to live affer,ydﬁ éot married?
Dia you stay there? |

JUDGE ELWARD: No, we stayed in Rogers Park. We

lived 1244 Farwell Avgnué which was just a block

“ from Saint Jerome's Church.. That was our parish

church, foﬁ usg, for our family.

“"We found a place there, an apafEment on
the third floor and stayed there for.a couple of
years and thqﬂlwe moved to another agartmentrgp,
not, that apartment was not 1244 Farwell.

It was something -- we moved to 1244, a
larger apartment aqd then in the-fall of '58 we had
alréady had two children; two boys,éone born in '55
and one in '57.

JUDGE HENRY: And what were the names of those?

JUDGE ELWARD: Joe was born in '55, November.
Bill was born in June of '57, number two son.

JUDGE HENRY: Okay.

JUDGE ELWARD: We then bought the house that we

13



now live ip, in 'the fall of '58, early '59.

-It was a big, twelve-roon house; three
stories, basemﬁnt’and my mother went around wi?h my
wife looking af placeg because I was in the
1egislatureﬁang not available and my mother sa?d,
"Well, are you.rédily going to need all this |
spaéé?" :

"Well," gshe said, "I have'got anothey one .

on the way." Ourx -third son, John, was born in the.
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spring of*¥69 and we had two more after; Tom and

Patrick.

JUDGE HENRY: So you have five.

JUDGE ELWARD:

JUDGE HENRY: Five boys.
.then a little bit.

When you got out of the Navy in

JUDGE ELWARD:

JUDGE HENRY: Now you had graduated -- you had

a double dose.

JUDGE ELWARD:

college which I did in the fall of

June of '47.

That's when I got my Bachelor of Arts from

Loyola with honors.

Five boys, no girls.

March of

I had one moxe year to finish

14

Let's just go back

'46 through to
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JUDGE HENRY: And what was your bachelor?

JUDGE ELWARD: Major‘in philosophy.

JUDGE HENRY: Philosophy,-so you had plenty of
the Jeguits then? |

JUDGE ELWARD: Oh, yes, in high school and
college. | )

JUDGE HENRY; My son just got accepted at Séint
Ignatius High school, sbAﬂe,is?ahout to have the
privilege of;hav}ng a Jesuit .education.

JUDGE ELWARD: wWeT%, wmy dad .was a graduate

t+here and son, John, and son, Patfick, both

graduated from S;int Ignatigé égllege on Roosevelt.
JUDGE HENRY: Let me just ask now about four
dad because you made reference to him“a minute ago.
He-was a lawyer in Chicago and pased upon
the ciients that you just mentioned, he must have
been a prominent lawyer during those years.
Where did your daé go to high school?
Where did he go to law school?
JUDGE ELWARD: My dad went to Sailnt Ignatius
High School.
JUDGE HENRY: Did he live in the community?
JUDGE ELWARD: He lived on the south side. T

don't know where, I don't know what grammax school

15
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hg went to.l He did go to Saint Ignatius when it
was a college, not a prep, so he:got“a college
degfeq there, then he went to Loyola Haw’School.

JUDGE HENRY: I see.

LJQDGE ELWARD: He graduated from Qoyola Law
Schobl_iﬁ‘i915 and was immediately iﬁviféd.back
that ééptember to begin teaéhing. |

- JUDGE HENRY: In the law school? ~

JUDGE@ELWARD: At thg law school froﬁ!1915
uitil 1942 when they closed because: of World War
1. A

JUDGE HENRY: Was the law school on_thé%campus
or wag it downtown? |

JUDQE ELWARQL‘ No, the law school was on
Franklin Street downtown. It was sort of a part of
a building on its own.

JUDGE HENRY: Okaz.

JUﬁGE ELWARD: See Loyola, well, Iénatius
College Prep turned into Loyola University in the
late 1% teens, about 1918, 1219.

That's when they opened the high schocol on
the north side and they moved the whole college up
there, but before that it was all downtown or south

gide.

16
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-JUDGE HENRY; While your dad waé teaching_at
the Law schoél was he also practicing law in the .
daytime?

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes.

JUDGE HENRY: He would have his -- he wouldl he
wags going out with %ynmother later that night, he.
would ﬂgve a tuxeao on teaching class i% the ”
eveniﬁé and theén meet my mother for dinner or
theaﬁerior whatever‘and when he dieduinﬂl980 the
people ﬁhat ¢&me to the wake or funeral?'a11<they
would ever say is that théy rememﬁered him as a
teachgr;‘

All he would ever say aboutrhis teaching
thing was he -- nobody ever slept. He taught
mostly real property and future interest.

He taught-in both the day school and the
night school of Loyola law for al} those years.

JUDGE HENRY: énd where did he wmaintain an
office?

JUDGE ELWARD: 111 Wesgt Washington Street in
what used to be call the Conway building.

I don't know if you are familiar with that
at all. It's 111 West. It's aeross from the Daley

Center, across from city hall now.

17
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The Conway building is kind of interesting
because this building was originally part of
Marshall Fields' estate and the Conway building was

named after a town or a city in New. England that

, Fields came from and there's a couple of other

lbuildings -- were in downtown Chicago that were

Fields' properties and he named them after towns

‘that he grew up in.

JUDGE HENRY: Ig‘s a beautiful building.

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes, 1t is.

JUDGE HENRY: And the title company took it
over. -

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes, some years ago.

JUDGE HENRY: Do you remember where the title
company was located before they moved into thaf
building by any chance?

JUDGE ELWARD: ©No, I do not. I would be
guessing.

JUDGE HENRY: And now they are across the
street at 161.

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes, oh, vyes, they are all over.

JUDGE HENRY: That's very interesting. I never
knew. I have always known it as the title
building.

18
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JUDGE ELWARD: Yes, well, it had a.big plaque
on ﬁhe outside with Chicago-Title aﬁd Trust om it
after they took over, but we always called it 111
and the ihteresting thing was my parents lived at
222 Eést phestnut Street and we used to_jpke about
that because éhere my father worked was.llliaﬁd
where he-iived was 222, just tQice the nﬁmber.

JUDGE HENRY: Was he a sole proprietdrship

there? Did herhave partners?

JUDGE ELWARD: No, he had partne#: Towards

the end, I and a.lawyer who 1s now dead, Edward

Macie, M—afc—i—e, well, we were partners, butJit

was pretty much his show.

He. taught an enormous number of lawyers,
law students in the '20s and '30s at Loyola, one of
whom wag Téderal Judge William Campbell, who later
became Master in Chancery;and at one time, I think
in the '30;, probably a third of the lawyéfs of the
judges in Cook County were former pupils.

JUDGE HENRY: Wow. What kind of practice did he
have, Judge?

JUDGE ELWARD: Real estate meogtly, estates,
future interests, tax planning soc upon.

It was a lot of, ag I recall lots of

19
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mortgage and real‘estate business in the '30s,
maybe because of the depression, maybe ﬁnconnected;
I don't know. !

JUDGE HENRY: So let's go back now.

JUDGE -ELWARD: uSgre.

JUDGE HENRY: As.yéﬁAéra growing up in Rogers

Park, what are your memories of grammar school?

Were they pleasant memories?

JUDGE ELWARD : Weliwairst of all Sginﬁ
Ignatius GfammaffSchool was segregated; boys in “one
building, girls in another.

_I'had the opppftﬁiity in one of theé upper

grades, 7th and 8th, to operate the player piano to

- which we marched up the stairs to the tunes, but

the two buildings were separate and we had, you
know, we had the Holy:Child Nuns.

JUDGE HENRY: I was going to ask you that
guestion. m

JUDGE ELWARD: We had their convent. It was
amaziﬁg. Mother Clements was our eighth grade
teacher.

I am sure sghe is gone by now, but she

taught us how to diagram sentences and I have never

forgotten.
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This ig eighth grade and of course, well,
we always had a few wiseacres.
o So we had one boy in eighth grade that

one, however I don't know why we are talking about

- marriage or whatever, but he said to Mother

Clements, he said, "Well, Mother;-if I am on a

desert island with a lady or woman or girl," and he

saia,fyou know, "We have got to have a priest to

solemnize the marriage, what do we do?"
"Don't worry, if you are there long

enough you will get married," but what she stressed

e

- was that the two people marry each other

The priest doesn't marry you. The
witnesses den't marry you. It's the husbang$and
wife who give each other.

They are the ones that make the marriage
qu I thought for 1937, '38, that was pretty
advanced theology. i

JUDGE HENRY: Yes.

JUDGE ELWARD: All thingg considered.

JUDGE HENRY: Might not get the same answer
today. I don't know.

JUDGE ELWARD: Well, yes; but the diagraming of

sentences.

21
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JUDGE HENRY: How many children were in your

“class, graduating class?

JUDGE ELWARD: We had two classes graduaping in
eighth grade-of the boys. I would say there were
roughly 3&1 §5 each.

JUDGE ﬂENR?:“ So 70.

JUDGE EﬁﬁARD: For sonmne reasoﬁ there wefé more
béyg than girlse.

:' JUDGE HENRY:- Now, during Qhos% years when you
were in“grammar school, were there.éporﬁgfteams or

what would you say your extracurricular activities

revolved around then?

JUDGE ELWARD: Mostly it wéé plays. We put on
a couple of plays a year. We put on the Christmas
Carcl in my last year at grammar school.

I played a character that I think I recall
that was called, Bumps, the butler, and we, at that
time, I don'tjknow how it was arranged, but a=man
by the name of Bob Eyden who was interested in
athlietics at the school and Saint Ignatius Grammar
School hosted a countrywide grammar school boys
basketball tournament every couple years.

So as I can remember some idiot telling

me, "Paul," I was not a player. "Here's this
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bucket. éo get me a bucket of steam.”

There's né such thing of course as’ a
bucket of steam, but, yop know, just going to £ind
how much Elward knows about basketball.

We, they had;a gym. They had a gym there.
We had a builder-type pastpr: Father George Dineen,
D-i-n-e-e-n, &esuit of éourse at Sailnt Ignatiés and
parish and hé-was very much interested in that.

They had a community theater, Loygla¥

bommunity Theater b&tween the.school buildings'and'ﬁfﬁ

 the church and I could recall iﬁ_high school going

there one time;

Iﬁ's a theater seated almost a théusand
pegple that he had built and we hqg"then Bishop
Fulton Sheen came and talked.

JUDGE HENRY: Wow.

JUDGE ELWARD: And also Father Hubbard, the
Jesuit from Alaska, but ﬁishop Sheen was really
something.

JUDGE HENRY: I remember watching him on TV in
the '50s.

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes. In those days he was just
Bishop. I think he was only a monsignor, but he

nad the red cape, very dramatic.
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JUDGE HENRY: I will tell you a cute story

about monsignors.

., You will remember that there was a

political-figure in Cock County by the name of Dan

Ryarn .

-JUpéﬁ ELWARD: Oh, vyes.
‘JUDGE HENRY: And DancRyan was 5arried to a
lady by the name of Ruby'ﬁyan and Dan Ryan passed

away and his widow, Ruby,fwas elected ﬁo the --

JUDGE- ELWARD : County board™

JUDGE HENRY: -- county board and there was at
that Fiméha monsignor in Cﬁicago unre}été& to the
Ryans whose name happeﬁed to be Dan Ryan and he
subsequently Lgft Chicago and became a bishop in
Champaign, Illinois, and I met him in Rome when I
was there for the deification of Edmond Ignatius
Rice who was the founder of the Irish Christian
Rice:

He was telling me this story personally,
that as a young priest monsignor, he was attending
gsome type of event in Chicago and he was sitting on
the dais and Ruby Ryan was also on the dais and the
MC introduced him as Monsignor and Mrs. Dan Ryan.

JUDGE ELWARD: Oh, no.
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JUDGE HENRY: In 1962 or '63 and the gasps from
the crowd.weré audible, what he said, but we
guickly cléafed'that up because otherwise, I ﬁo?ld’
have never continued with my careexr in the church
if that had'gptFen back.

JUDGE ELWARD: No, that would be -- I can

remember stories, Dan Ryan of course would come to

. these political dinners and I remember he came “to

one which was at the Greek orthodqg church down
near ﬁbllyWﬁUd and Sheridan. - s

JUDGE HENRY: Excuse me.

JUDGE ELWARD{V He said, "You know this is the
38£h gtraight niéht that I have had-corn beef ana
cabbage and I am getting ﬁick of it."

You know it was é mostly an Irish group as
you can imagine. -

JUDGE HENRY: So when you left high school?

JUDGE ELWARD : Loyola Academy on the campus of
Loyola, just a couple of blocks away farther east.

JUDGE HENRY: I understand why you took your
wife to a play the first time if you were starring
in plays in grammar school, what did you do when
went to high sqhool?

JUDGE ELWARD: No, I was not in plays in high

25"



710

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

—ea

school; debating and oxatory contests in high
school. |

I was on the Loyola Débate team. We
traveled all over Cook County debating other high
schools. .

JUDGE HENRY: And those:aﬁe“fond memories for
vou being in the“high schoocl years? "

JUDGE ELWARD: . Yes.

JUDGE HENRY:JiOkay.

 JUDGE ELWARD:- I wégﬁthird'br fourth in my

cléssh taking both Latin and Greek:,
I took fbﬁr years oﬁ-Légin and three years
of Greek in addition to the other subjects. |

~-. We had physics the fourth year in the
laboratory dewn in the basement of the Dunbar Hall
in the main building and we had an irascible old
Jesuit by the name of Cornéll, Robert Walter
Cornell. “

Cornell had a large thick, red pencil and
he would mark your papers up like nobody's
business, but it was a good experience.

In fourth year high school in the fall of

September '41l, we had a priest come in to teach us

religion and he =said, "You are all senhiors in this
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room," and he says, "I want you to remember that
basiéally you are only niﬂéty—seven cénts worth of
chemicqls;and five gallons of water. S0 don't get
any idéas that you are big shots.® That's what put
usrin'qqr place. D
JﬁQGE ﬁﬁNRY: Did many of your classm?t;s from
Saint ignatius go to Loyola gr did the? scatter

about to other schools?

JUDGE. ELWARD: Well, no, my physics partner was

'Ry McDermott who later became a ddctor. I think

he went to Loyéla Medical School.

{Ra?ﬁand I were physiés partners;‘Hémwould
do the calculations of thé experiments we were
working on. I would do the arithmetic. So we made
a good team. I think he.is still alive.

JUDGE HENRY: Did you find that you maintained
friendships from your grammar school class more
than yo;r high school class because you;spent more
time with them?

JUDGE ELWARD: Cver the years, the grammar
school of course was very much neighborhocod.

You didn't know anybody in grammar school
that wasn't living within five or six blocks of

you. Now some of those people of course you got to
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know in high school, Johnny ﬁean, Loyola basketball
player, the Hallogins, Stegar, not Stegar, buf, no,
the bo?s' class wa§ a double class.

It was so big you really didn't get to

know too well. Now, it was some of those people.

1 A

Harold Tigen, Phil_ﬁébﬁer, that I plavyed baseball-_
and faotgall withrén-the weekends, you kgow, get tg
know thém{ but many of them I haven't seen or heard
from.in years unfortﬁnately. )

JUDGﬁ'HENR¥;5 So giwven your high schaél years
and youx degree_in college, when was it that you
decided that law wou;& be something that you would
want Eé pursue as a érofession? .

How did that come abgut?

PUDGE BLWARD: Well, firs£ my fa;her was a
lawyer and he never pushed it.

I was intrigued because at the dinner
tagle where we met évery night, my dad would talk
about the law generally, not any particular case,
and I was aware of the work that he did and then of
course when I was 1in college I worked part-time in
his office and he had a -- he had a major patent
case involving oil producing machinery.

And I remember T had the assignment of
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lugging his final master's report around to the
different law offides and'it'Was about 985 printed
pages . .

JUDGE HENRY: Wow.

JUDGE ELWARD: Master's regort and of course

: Qur family knew Judge Campbell's family.

In fact, my parents I think were
godparents for one of the daughters: and well, we
woluld -- my folka_aséociated with them, with the

Campbeil‘s socially.

Their kids were younger than we were so I

%didh't get to know_thém too well and of course two

of my grandchildren now go to Sacred Heart on
Sheridan.Road, now where there is a building that

was donated by the Campbell family. I think it's

“the auditorium or recreation cernter.

JUDGE HENRY: So your interest in law developed
from access to the inside view ;f it from your dad
working in the law firm?

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes, and reading the newspapers
and those type of things.

JUDGE HENRY: I know you had a political
career.

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes.
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JUDGE HENRY: As you got out of law school and

you got establlshed but where do you thlnk the

political Lnterest evolved?

1

Did that come from the Jesuits? Did it

come from your dad, from your mom?

1

JUDGE ELWARD: It came from the fact that my

father ran for politics and lost a couple of times.

Dad ran for Congress in 1938 agalnst Ralph

Church who was a 51tt1ng Republlcan congressman at

a tlme when the dlStrlCt ran from Belmont Avenue to

the Wlscon51n state line and Church's only asset,

S

his only boast in his llterature wasg that he never

missed a vote in Washington, and my dad put out

some literature pointing out that he would have

chairs and furniture and made every vote, too.

Sd"we went around and handed out gome

literature everyday for my dad. He came close, 1938

of course there was some

the democrats for trying

revulsion against FDR and

to pack the Supreme Court

in '37; so I think of course they called my father

world you would expect.
I think in a tot

that dad caume mayberlo,OO

30
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He gave-Church theAbest race he ever haa.
JUDGE"HENRY:. How many years had Church beenrin “
Congress? | ! |

JUDGE ELWARD: Since 1930; eight, nine, ten,
twelve terms, eventualgy died and Linas succeeded
him, but he and ny fathe? ;tayed friendly.

La%er on wheﬁ I was in the Navy in the
east, Churbh's offiCéﬂwas helpful in getting_me
into midghiéﬁan school. )

JUDGE HENRY : “Now, didithaf district eveﬂtualT?f
become Congressman Yates' disérict?

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes,{it“éid and now it's
Congress%an Shakowski's, but the districﬁ is, you
know, has been pretty divisive. o

JUDGE EENRY: What else did your dad run foxr?
You said he also ran for political office.

Did he run for another political office
besides congress? ;

JUDGE ELWARD: No,‘dad ran in '38 for Congress
once, losgt. He was a delegate to the 1940
democratic convention.

JUDGE HENRY: In Chicago.

JUDGE ELWARD: With Roogsevelt for the third

term.
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JUDGE HENRY: That was in Chicago, wasn't it?
JUDGE ELWARD: It was in Chicago, ves.
,  JUDGE HENRY: Were you able to attend?

JUDGE ELWARD: No, I was not invited and didn't

. to go that one. 28 years later. in '68 of course I

wasia delegate to the convention here in Chicago,
but, vyou know, I had a different career by then.
JUDGE HENRY: So you were married.” You had two

yvoung-children. Youﬂaré living in Rogers Park.

~ - You aré.pfacticing law with vour dad?

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes.

Q'JﬁBEE HENRY : Thenlhdw did you{dedi&e to make
that perilous leap iﬁto politics? How did that come
about? Was that --

JUDGE ELWARD: A moment of idiocy. No, in
1956, the legislature had redistricdted itself and
there was only one incumbent state representative
oflthe three in our district and I=had been wanting
to get -- I had been getting involved a little bit
in works, precinct captain for the democrats, so I
decided to run.

JUDGE HENRY: What ward were you in then?

JUDGE ELWARD: I was in 49.

JUDGE HENRY: Was that Neil Hartigan?
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JUDGE ELWARD: The ward -- yes, Neil Hartigan.
Although at that time I thlnk 1t was Paton and his
followers. ! | ;

(Whereupon, there was a byrief pause
in“the proceedings.) | .
, JUDGE ELthﬁ: And so there waslan open spot.

13 of us filed for the two democratic

spots. in the Aprll primary of '56 and there were'

”11tera11y meetlngs of candidates.. W1th the public ~

where the candldates outnumbered the audlence
There were 13 of us trying for the two spots.
I got nomlnated by 11ke 110 votes over the

next, over who finished third. 8o there was Esther

Saperstein and myself against Mike Sletnik, the-

“ incumbent, Mike Slatnik and Irwin Martay,

M-a-r-t-a-y, who was the incumbent state
representatitegrepublican.

Four of us ran against each other in the
fall. There were only three spots to be filled and
surprisingly enough Martay was the one that lost
out, the incumbent, the only incumbent which is
unusual, but it was very interesting.

I mean, as I gay the interest in the state

representative race is minimal. Once a state
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representative, sowebody without a gun. That would
be one wayrdf putting it.

JUDGE HENRY: So were;thére three democrats
elected then?

JUDGE ELWARD: No, thrﬁewwere elected; two
democrats, PauliElward and'Es%her Saperstein and
Mike Slatnik w%s the only republican.

JUDGE HENRY: Oh, Mike wad a republican?

JUDGE ELWAﬁﬁ: Yes. Thié‘was under the,ol& 
tﬁree people to‘a diggfict thing ﬁhich idiotg have
Eaken away from us now to I think,our lossg.

JUDGE HENRY;‘ I think ;hagwjust answered_myn
next guestion.

. Lot of great people were elected as the
minority candidate in districts. Didn't Speaker
Redmond get elected from DﬁPage County?

JUDGE: ELWARD: Yes, he wags a democrat elected
from DuPage County which would not have been
possible except for the two-in-one because in those
dayvs you had three votes for state representative.

You could give them all to one person. God
blesg you. You could split them, one and a half to
each of two or you could give one to each of three

caﬁdidates.
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Of course we Qere all urging a bullet
voté. |
JUDGE HENRY: What's a bullet wvote?
JﬁDGE ELWARD: Where you give youf whole three
votes, to Elward or Smith. .
QUDGE.HENRY: It created a good‘legisiative

body.

JUDGE ' ELWARD: Yes, because there was a

mixture: ”

i'méan if you were a demoérat as we were
in a Democra£ic district, but there was a
republicaﬁ? you had to be céreful becapée;;f you
went too far one way or the other the other, the
other, the republican would blow the whistle on.you
and say, "Hold on. Wait a minute. These guys are
stealfhg the house, " you know.

\JqDGE HENRY: So .you were elected 'in '56 in
November? “

JUDGE ELWARD: Right.

JUDGE HENRY: Sworn in '577?

JUDGE ELWARD: '57, well, I was sworn in, in
January.

JUDGE HENRY: January '57. How long did you

gerve in the houge?
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JUDGE ELWARD: From 1957 until I resigned in
Deééﬁber of 1976, after I was elected judge;

JUDGE HENRY: , I see so that's --

JUDGE ELWARD: 14 vyears.

JUDGE HENﬁY;;V—— 14 yeaxrs.

JUDGE ELWARD:. ?n“fact I was renominated for .
the eiéhth term in the gummer, but I h;d young
children. |

| T wanted tospend more time ag home and,
you knoﬁ, we“wére running back and fortﬁ every”
week; down thexe for fouf,days, went back, go down.

JUﬁGE HENRY : pid;;ou drive down'of'take the
train? |

JUDGE ELWARD: Drove down.

JUDGE HENRY: Drove down. Let. me, before we go
on to your judicial career, let's spend some time
with the 1egislétive career.

JUDGE ELWARD:_ Okay.

JUDGE HENRY: During that time, were the
democrats the majority party in Springfield or were
they --

JUDGE ELWARD: No, when I went down in '57, the
republicans, Warren Wood of Plainfield was the

speaker.
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He was a republican. Republicans ran it.

Now in '59 the democrats had taken the majority of

" +he house in the '58 election and I had been

reelected and Paul Powell became speaker with some

interesting sidelights.

4

You know, Powell was a deal maker and in

~fact they had triéd, they tried to do him out of

the spot as speaker on the dgrounds because of what

~he had done.

He had takén -s~the democrats were
actﬁally not a majority. We were oné_or two short,
But he had reached over on the'régﬁblican side and
pulled in a coﬁple of republiéans. They voted fér
him foghspeaker. For what reason I dogit know.

So the republicans were challenging-ghis
in court and I actually filed:a lawsuit in
Springfield ggainst them for depriving him of his
spot. So I was one of his 1aW§ers at that time.
Very, very colorful character.

JUDGE HENRY: Where was he from?
JUDGE ELWARD: Paul Powell was from Vienna in
Johnson County in way southern part of the state.
Powell ran a restaurant. He was first

etected in 1935 or '36 at the time that Richard J.
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Daley first became a membér of the Iliinois house
asra républican.

!Johnson had a restaurant andrthg story was
told, it-may or may not be true, but he Qas gitting
with.alcpgtomer one day and the waitérAapd cook
came oﬁt:f?o% the kitchen and said, "I am-éoiry
Mr. Jonés, we don't have any ﬁore Soup,ﬁﬁand
according to’the story, Powell took the waiter by
the ear, took him into theﬂkiﬁéhen. "You éee that
faudet? As long as that faucet-is wo¥king we have
soup."

?é ;;s -- he drove_anrbldsmobile'ér“ﬂ
Pontiac that cost more thaﬂ a Rolls Royce. It had
avery congeivable’ggdget on it I think, bgt in hisw;
district you couldn't driye a Cadillac.

"-Johnson County in the southern part of

ITllinois had more people on relief than anybody

.else in the state, more than Cook County or in

Chicago, lot of older people, a lot of people on
welfare. |

JUDGE HENRY: And coal was the big industry in
southern Illinois?

JUDGE ELWARD: Pardon?

JUDGE HENRY: "Was coal a big industry in
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gsouthern Illinois at that time?

JUDGE ELWARD: On a decline.

JUDGE HENRY: Declining?

JUDGE ELWARD: My father and I got involved in
a lawsuit involﬁing;?eabody Coal Company :ater on
in the '50sg, earlyrhsoﬁ before he went to the

legislature.

JUDGE HENRY: What committees did you serve on ~

in themleéislature?

JUDGE ﬁLWAﬁﬁ?* Revenhe,-municipalities} thege-
were committees that were iﬁportant to Mayor Daley,
the firgt.Mayor Daley;

In 1961t I became the first meﬁber, t he
first chairman of the house rg;es committee, a spot
that +had always been in the hands of Lthe speaker,
but Powell for some reason decided not to be
chairman of the rules committee andrmade me
chairman. 7

I am not going to quarrel with that. My
'61 assignments, committee assignments were not
too good and I talked to dad about it and dad
talked to Bill Lynch, Mayor Daley's former partner,
and Lynch of course had served 1n the senate and I

think he called somebody and he said, you should be

39
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T better, g0 I got chairman of the rules committee

2  which wasn't as important as it sound.

3 ! ) The rules committee ﬁeg at the beginning

4 :of the session to adopt the rules for the house for

5‘ . ;?hat year and that was 1it, but - -

6 | . f MJUDGE HENRY: One second.

7 | (Whereupon,réhere was ; brief pause

g - ¢ S in the prOCéeéings.V'”

9  =cJUDGE HENRY: _pet1s go back oﬂ_the record.
165 © . How did you éhjoy<?0ur years as a state
11 législétor?

12 ;- "JUDGE ELWARD : Well, the timetable, the absence
13 from home- hurt, ydﬁ know, because I had by '59,

14 | well, by 157 I had two sons already. '59 we had

15 another one. |

16 - We had anothex one in '61 and another one
17 " in '64; five boys, so, you know, you get to miss
18 }hem and my youndgest son was having some hearing
19 problems and, you know, and it became a bit of a
20 problem, but I enjoyed it very much. It was a

21 wondexrful learning experience.

22 There were great people down there, hard
23 working that was a pleasure to serve with, Tony

24 Scariano, Ed Mikva, Harold Katz, and of course
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Powéll,_Pollack and John Touh?, and others, Very,
very inte?ésting. | |

JUDGElHENRf: Did you have a -- did yéuihaVe a
roommate whén you lived down there?

JUDGEaELW%RD: No, no, I stayed at the Qlks
C}ub which ﬁad éﬁe advantage of not allowing'm
%nybody above the floor that wasﬁ:t a membe;, not a
ﬁember, Bﬁf-atrésident.

| No, I didn't have a rgomﬁate.

JUDGE HENRY: - Okay. E s

JUDGE ELWARD: :Because I had weird hours,
sﬁéying late{inighe house and wprking.

JUDGE HENRY: You mentioned that you were on
two committees that wegre important to you?

JUDGE ELWARD: Municipalities and revenue.

~ JUDGE HENRY: What was your relationship-like
with Richard J. Daley? |

JUDGE ELWARD: Well, while I was in the
legislature and after '61, when I or -- no, after
161 when I became majority whip under Touhy, we
would meet with the mayor every Friday afternoon in
his office at City Hall and go over what had
happened in the paét week, what disasters we

thought were going to happen next week and, you
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know,. geg general ideas.

‘The City.had a number of pieces of
legislation which the mqyor gave to Touhy and Touhy
would divide them between me and Art McGuinn who
wag the democratic legdgr in the state senate, but
the reiationship'was kind?of interesting because in
the fall of,ﬂin the faii of '58, I had alrea&§ had
my '55, '56;land '58 terms and I went to see the
mayor. |

No, I'takéfthat back. Let's go on Lo 1 64

_when we won the at-large election. I had just beeén

a figure in tﬁe house.

in t64 I went in to see the mayof atter
the election when we swept the house. We got two
thirds of the house and I wanted to put a pitch in
for a leadership spot, whip, you know, number
three, and I was expecting him to say, well, you
know, you are a good gué, Paul, and we will think
about it.

He said, "Well, no, Paul, you are going to
be the majority whip next week," by CGod which
normally wasn't Richard J. Daley's way of
operating.

He didn't normally say, yes, you are it,
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and then he went on to ask me, well, who should be

the majority leader. It was understand Jack Tunney
ﬁogld’be the speaker when we took qontrol of the
house in '59. 8o we talked, he and.I, just the two
Qf;us about who would be a good majority leader.

. There were a number of poséfbiiities. One

of the ones I thought it was more 1ikely than not

“was Clyde Schulz who was from downstate.

Schulz came froﬁ Powell's general area and

=T thought that he would be logdcal and he did

become the majority leader, but Schulz was not an
inteiléGEual and he was not a very hérdﬁ%orker.
Good man, I guess he has go£ medical

problems there, but I became in effect the mayor's
man on the floor because Touhy was sitting ué‘in
the:roster seats. There were interesting times.

JUDGE HENRY: Wow, I'l1l bet.

=JUDGE ELWARD: So from there I became a member

ex officio.

JUDGE HENRY: In that capacity, serving on
those two committees that were important to Mayor
Daley.

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes.

JUDGE HENRY: And therefore important to- the
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éity of Chicago, and I do know jﬁst when I was a
yéﬁng lawyer é lot of the litigatfbn thatArevdlved
around the héma rule issue that was part of thq
1970 constitution.
‘JUDGE ELWAED: Yes.
JUDGE HENRY: And we will get to that a 1it_t,rl“ie i
bit:ﬁore, but auring your‘time in tﬁé 1egislatﬁré,
did you-feelehat‘the-city of Chicago needed that.
homeirule authority? |
JﬁDGE'*E"L‘WARD: No question.
JUDGE HENRY: ‘Okaf{ tell me something about
yQur.éxperienceéWitﬁrthat.
JUDGE ELWARD: Well, everythiﬁg was just
anti-Chicago.

T mean it was just a general attitude of
whatever the Chicago wants it's got to be bad.
automaﬁically‘without even rea@ing it and, you
know, for examéie, until we got home rule, welli
no, until we got the bills passed that I sponsored
in '61, the Citf of Chicago had to have or could
not have revolving blue lights on squadcars.

I mean it was controlled by the state
law. Coﬁldn't have any -- here's a City of three

million people or over three million in those days

44



10

11

12,

13

i4 -

15

16

37
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

and we couldﬁ't, and of course, but of coursé at
this time 1966, you héd the Summerdale Police~
scandal and{ vou know,-theqe wag allegationg later
unfortunately proved to be true about improper
activities, so nobody ﬁas inclined to give us, give
Chicago anything there, bﬁt ﬁhéy kept forgetting
that there had ﬂeen gome bfoblems.

As a iéwyer my father represented and I

helped him, teprésented_a big engineering compan§

" that wanted to do som&thing in one of the south
subuxrbs and they had an ordinance down there that

unless the company had originaféﬁ in Illinocis and

was licensed in Illinoisg and produced in Illinois,
they.gouldn't bid on city business, you know.

Talk about an extortion racket and many of
the suburbs did operate that way, not all of them,
not Evanston, but some of them were terrib;e.

JUDGE HENRY: So your éﬁperience in the
legislature provided you with insight into the
elected representatives throughout the state.

What was the demeanor, the tenocr of the
relationships between the members of the house on
both sides of the aisle during that day, just while

you are thinking about that, you know, today they
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say that politics in Washington perhaps in
épriﬁgfield they are go -=<
iJUPGE'ELWARD: Divisive. !
JUbGE HENRY : -- divigive, that nothing is Jjust
subj@cp to reasonable debate, that you. are either
with-me ;ruyou are agailnst me. ” -

H Do yeu feel that tﬁe times tﬁét.you were
in ‘thé legislature in Illinois aside from this
Chicago aownstate rift, Whaf'was the relétionship
LEtween the members? ' '%??'

JUDGE ELWARD: No, no, no, many of the bills
got sup?érfﬁon both sides of the aisle.
It was no repubiican bill, we are goilng to
vote itrdown.

o

I do remember we had one, one lady from a

far out-town. I won't mention her name.or the town

and she was, she was given to imbibing early in the
day ané one day somebody had a bill to do
gomething, and she gets up and she said,
"Mr. Speaker, I mové we lay all the grandmothers
on the table."

It took 15 minutes to get the house back
in order, but she was -- she was unique.

She was not typical of the republicans .or
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the democrats and thefe were many, many good peéple
on both sides of the aisle who did work with'ybu“in
committee or eléew?ere if you had a good bill ydu
could go to them ahd say, "I need some help."
JUDGE HENRY;_ Were you able to maintain
on-going friendshipgiwith people throughout the
state agd how didsyoﬁ keep in touch with them aftér
you 1ef£fthe legislature or was that difficult?. .
JUDGE ELWARD: Wélj, in 1964 when we ran at
large . e | | s
JUDGE HENRY: Let me ask you a guestion.
‘Would you'jﬁsfhexplain for me what that
meanﬁ, "ran at largé"? |
JUDGE ELWARD: Yes. The legislature had not
redistricted itself since afound 1910 except for
the house and I think some court somewhere, federal,
ox what, threw it out, the whole thing.
So the house had to run ét large. So each
side, each party put up 118 candidates for the 177
houge spots.
So there were 118 democrats and 118
republicans. The democrats had Adlai Stevenson as

one of them and myself and my opponent, Scariano.

The republicans had Eisenhowexr's brother,
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Earl Eisenhower, as one of their candidates, but a

group of us, Scariano, Nate Kaplan, myself formed. a

car caravan and we went around the northern part of
!

the state and even into the southern part,

campaigning for the, whole ticket, both the entire

4

‘democrats and the democrats did‘ba}ry that election

in '64.

That was the  Johnson-Goldwater election
yaou may recall, but"it was, weli,awe were out in
Ottowa, Illinois, Irthink%pr Sterlipg;

There's a Northwestern Steel and Water

rcoﬁbany We were olut there at 11:4% at night,

meeting the guys that came off one shift and

‘started on the next shift with our literature.

e
- s

Vexry 1nterest1ng travellng around and, you

.. know, seeing the different parts of the state in a

way you normally wouldn't and we went down into the
Alton and East Saint Louis area, too, not too-much
but mostly the northern part of the state.

JUDGE HENRY: So the people that you met during
your years in the legislature, you know, I am sure
you made friends thfoughout the state.

After you left the legislature, were you

able to keep in touch with them or how did that
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work?
JUDGE ELWARD: Well, I kept in touch with some
people. Iimean I have stayed in touch with Abner
[ i

and Klein and some of the others, at various

thingé.x

L 4

'I met a couple of them a couple yeéré ago.
The Chicégo, the Illinoig State Bar Association had
a ceremony for, those of us who had been lawyers for

50 years and I met Mikva there and a couplerqﬁ
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others..

So; you know, you see them from time to'

‘time, maybe downtown, or elsewhére. Now that -I'm

retired I don't see them as much, but, you know, I

mean if I get a phone call, I know who they were.

They know who I was.

It was a good education, good people to

meet and>I learned a lot from them.

JUDGE HENRY: Yes,

also in 1964, there was the’

-- it was called the judicial ballot, was that in

647

JUDGE ELWARD: Yes,

I think that that's when we

reformed the Court system by taking away the

separate election of the probate judge and the

municipal court judge,

49
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JUDGE HENRY: That must have been a wild
election year? |

JUDGE ELWARD: VIt‘was very, very wild.

JUDGE HENRY: Was:that_judicial article
statewide?.

JUDGE ELWARD: Oh,1&eé. It was an amendment to
the Constiéution. -

JUDGE ﬁENRY: - see.

JUDGE ELWARD: Youuknow, we were electiﬁg the
bailiff of the mwnicipal -court in those dafé whigh.
was absurd.

JUDGE HENRY: So npw the judicial article of

164 basically became the judicial article of the

-1970 constitution?

PR

JUDGE ELWARD: Pretty much, yes, vyes.

JUDGE HENRY : Okay, so was there a reason that
the judicial article in '64 to amendlthe
constitution was taken separately frém what must
have been anticipated to be a constitutional
convention within gix years later?

JUDGE ELWARD: Well, '64 there was talk of a
constitutional convention and I think there was
even a proposition on the ballot to call one, but

the history of constitutional conventions in
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Tllinois had not been good and there was no thought

that there was a guérantee that they would take

plaoe or the results would be acceptable because
! i

you had seven oxr eight constitutional conventions

z_51nce 1870 when the Illinois . constltutlon was

adopted and they had all pretty much gone down the
slope.
" JUDGE HENRY: Nothing came of it?,
JUDGE ELWARD: They had one, the last one
beforé.oﬁrs was in 1926; butethings just didn't geow
dopted
JUDGE HENRY: Was the judicial'arﬁicie, was it
controversial? | 1
JUDGE EQWARD: Yes. There were those in the

convention who wanted an appointed judiciary.

governor to appoint subject from a blue ribbon list

‘proposed by somebody, you know,  who decides who is

blue ribbon and who isn't blue ribbon. Of course? a
long-standing question.

That was interesting because we, the
convention, the last day to deal with that part of
the constitution was on Saturday and unfortunately
a number of our local delegates had been out Friday

night celebrating baseball in the southern air.
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They did not make the roll call Saturday

“morning so the few of us that were there, using

delaying téc%ics to hold things off until we!could
get the bodies in to defeat the appointed judge
thing Or‘aF }east to leave it open, you knpw,
JUDGE HEN&%:H So was this in '64 or beca;éé of
the -- o |
:JUDGE~EEWARD3 No, this was the convention in
t71. :
u'JUD@EﬁHENRY:'VSo:in 164, the jﬁSticagﬁof the:_

peace were determined to be grandfathered in as

associate judges? B S

TUDGE ELWARD: Well, T don't, I don't -- that
may be true, but 1 don{; recall that specifica}ly,
but what we did was weutrimmeq it, a lot of, ?ou
know, separate election municipal judges, bailiffs,
head of the probate division} trimmed it down and
trimmed 1t gdbd fashion. ©Not much disagreement on
that.

JUDGE HENRY: Statewide evérybody was?

JUDGE ELWARD: Statewide that was it.

JUDGE HENRY: That was it. Were they electing
judges the same way in the gmaller counties, do you

know or do you remember?
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JUDGE ELWARD: Well --

JUDGE HENRY: Was that a uniquely Cook County

"experience because of the population?
|

JUDGE ELWARD: No, no, the judges were elected
everywhere, but of course the feeling and thought
was downsgtate, "Hey, Irknéﬁ Judge Jones. I mean
his farm is jﬁét down tﬁé £oad from my farm. I mean
he is not somébpdy anonymous ,on a ballot that I

never heard of, don't know anything about."

So they were; they were allies against

"appointment of judges in many cdses. Of course we

are influenced by the newspapers and maybe still
are, you kﬁow, calling fo£ the apppintment'df
judges, but nobody has ever said how.

I mean in those aays whenﬁ;hey talked
about appointmént of judges, are they talking about
the govgrnor? Well, what party is the governor
going to belong to?

If they are talking about confirmation by
the senate, this was the day when, for years the
senate had been in the republican's control
apparently and, you know, we don't want judges that

have to pass republican muster serving in Cook

County or Chicago.
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So it was very, very intéresting because
there was a lot of hardeeelings-on'how that went.
| gUDGE HENRY : Wow. s
_SUDGE ELWARD: T mean nothing for life orx
anythlng, but I mean people felt very strongly we
should have appointed judges.
A Well, who is g01ng to appOLnt them? Well,

that's ‘a:detail we will WOTTY about-that  later on.

Well, no, it's more than a detail, becéqse T think

“~fhere was really an attempf to model it after the

federal sysfem, but in the federal system the

senate stlll has to conflrm I

I mean just because the pre81dent picks
you doesn't mean you will get there automatlcally
and the guestion was here how much mofe powerKAQ
you want to give the govexrnor?

The governor in I1linois has a lot of
powe;, a lot of power, depending on whose party
controls both houses so for even one house in the
legislature.

Some days he has more power than the
president of the United States in getting his

things done and of course we would, Touhy and I in

61 and thereafter when I was majority whip and
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Tbuhy was spgaker, he and I ana McGuinn would meet
with Govertor'Kerner at the executive mansidn every
Monday night.-

;

We would go over the bills. We would tell
the governof what had happened last week, what we
thought was g01ng to happen this week. ;.

His offlce had prepared some 'bills that
they wanted in,” to do this for department minds. and
wq4would take it from there.

| Itﬁugt finished reading the Biograghy of
Governor Kerner and it Was too bad.

He got 1nvolved in racetrack stock and he
did some dumb thlngs. I mean the Unlted State! s;
Attorney, when his trial came up, gaid to him,

"Now, when you were governor, did you ever do

anything to influence the racing track dates?"

" Which was very' important with racetracks.

"No, nol no, never did." The prosecutor
had the damn letter that Kerner had written to
Marge Everette, the head of the racing board,
telling her what dates he wanted Arlington to have
and what dates they wanted to have.

Anyway, when you see a man holding a

letter in front of you asking you a guestion, you
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better be careﬁul what yoﬁ answer .
JUDGE HENRY: Right.
JUDGE ELWARD: Becausé Ehe'chances are the
piece of paper is not his kids' repoft card.
JUDGE HENRY: . And cdn;radict your positiomn.
JUDGE ELWARD: Right. Hgiéof bad advice from --

JUDGE HENRY: Ted Isaacs.

JUDGE ELWARD: - Ted Fsaacs. He said -- I

- yemember one qighE Touhy and I,..when 1 was, in '61

‘or thereafter, I had diviner with Touhy every night,

just the two of us.
Jack would mever let anybody buy him
dinner or even buy him a Coke, so we would go

somewhere to a restaurant together and I had been

reading the paper the day before and i.said,;"You
know, Isaacs was involved in.an auto accident last
wéek:”

"Damn. That's whwaerner changed.his
mind, " about such and such. I forgot what 1t was
because Isaacs had come down and moved him around.

See, the problem was that Kerner's
judicial background was, easy background. Somebody

wants to adopt a child, you don't have a big fight

out there. Everything is lovey, dovey.
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They are giving this baby aiWQnderfui new
oﬁportunity and a good loving famii? and, vyou know,
or séme?ody wante to change their namé.‘

| You don't get into controversy}over name

chahggs;as a Jjudge. T mean I think tpat was his
defect., . ‘
; He had never sat in"a courtroom where you

had twd, two really tough adversaries really going

at each other.

Sometimes strange things happen in.a
courtroom.

JUDGEVHEﬁRY: S0 he wasn't used to the rﬁugh
and tumble word of politiéé? |

JUDGE ELWARD:#hNo, no, he wasn't and his
judicial background did not., in my opinién did ngé“
make him-a good executive.

He was a nice man personally -and he and I,

I had no gquarrels with him, nothing he ever did for
me oY agalnst me one way oY another, but I didn't
have a --

JUDGE HENRY: Is that a current biography that
you just read?
JUDGE ELWARD: Yes, I will get you the name of

the pexrson. Just came out and I just finished
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reading one of Kerner, one of Powéll and I forgot.

JUDGE HENR?:"Think of it for you¥ next
interview. {

JUDGE ELWARD: :Yes.

JUDGE HENRY:L Because I want to see what the
retired legislatdr‘?éédé_in his free time.

JUDGE ELWARD: Jﬁeil, somehow you don't stay
away from_it.

JgDGE HENRY : Yoﬁlthink it gets in yéﬁr blood
and it sﬁicks~with you forever? | B B

JUDGE ELWARD: Well, you know, you think about,
I mean, yés, there are times when I wish I were
back Ehere, you kno#, to say somethinglhowever

minuscule my influence might be to, you know, get

invq;ved. {
. JUDGE HENRY: Would youl—— I will ask yvou one
more question for this sesgion.
JUDGE ELWARD: Okay.
JUDGE HENRY: And then it's 4:00 o'clock and
Joyce is going to have to go.
JUDGE ELWARD: I know.
JUDGE HENRY: Would you advise, I was told one

time that Mayor Richard J. Daley advised his

children not to get involved. in politics and of
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course as we know his children ignored that advice
ag many children do of their parents' advice.
Would you advise yoﬁr children to get
i g

involved in politics or would. you advise them not

. to get involved?

4

' JUDGE ELWARD: I would do f_qff them what my
father did for me. 'i would leé#e:it up to them,
their own decision.
| Now, Richard J. Dalevy, Ehg first mayor, as
I say was very decisiﬁe about some things and otﬂér

things]were sort of left open because we met in the

'faliﬁof 171 after the convention had  adjourned and

the guestion was should the Democratic party

endorse an Illinois constitution and there weve

e

pros and cons and I would be sitting in his office

~with him, with Tommy Lyons who was the First Ward

Committeeman and also vice president of the
convention and only a couple of us.

Oh, Tom Keane was in there at that time,
talking about, well, to me the big thing that I
told the mayor was with this home rule provision we
can do so much more for the City.

For example, until that time Chicago had

no control over milk production in Wisconsgsin. We
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could examine the milk and if it was bad, we could

turn it down, the health department, the City

couldn'ﬁ; but we had no control over that.
{

We finally did get a bill passed allowing

,Chicago to inspect dairy farms outside of Chicago

[ !

that were prédﬁcing milk for Chicago, unﬁeaia 6f.

The same as the revolving lights on a

'squadcar}fgotrghat passed and, you know,. a lot of
ditty, bitty ﬁhings that no city ©of our size éhpuld

have ggﬁput up. with, but, you know, thgge were .the:

davs.

JUDGE HENRY And these are good memories? .™

JUDGE EiWARD: Yes, good'memories. |

Now, I enjoyed my time and I have got many

friends froﬁ the day;%of thg legislature and it
was - - |

JUDGE. HENRY: You know what we are going to do,
we are goling to break now because it's 4:00 o'clock
and we will reconvene and what we will pick up
with, we will talk about the constitutional
convention.

JUDGE ELWARD: Okay.

JUDGE HENRY: 2nd then how the mechanisms went

into play that gave you the oppeortunity to become a
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judgé.
JUDGE<ELWARD£ -Okay.
JUDGE HENRY: And then I would like to talk to
|
you about your judiciai career.

Those are'the‘topics we would like to
cover. I kind of ruéh%dfoVer a little bit of vyour
law school Career, soHés=we start the guestions
about your judgeship, .1 would like to go back
briefly and"f will make é;note for Joyce so*ﬁe will
have a t;anécriptgiﬁ : s

I would like to know more about your law
school years. So just think about this now.

JUDGE ELWARD: A1l ;ight.
JUDGE HENRY: What did you enjoy? How were your

e

ﬁrofessprs? What friendéhips did}you make there?
Was it exciting? Were you scared of thé bar, you
couldn't wait to take it, things like that.

JﬁDGE ELWARD: Well, I had some ffiends who
graduated from Harvard Law School and elsewhere who
took the bar three times.

I passed it the first time I took it and I

was surprised, and then of course pleased.

JUDGE HENRY: Judge, thig has been a lot of

fun. I really enjoyed it vyou.
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JUDéE ELWARDE Do you want to set a'date ﬁow-or
not?
JUDGE HENRY: It's up to you. I have to check
. i
with Joyce, 1f she is available. |
(WHIQH WERE ALL'THE PROCEEDINGS
HAD IN THE AéOﬁEJENTITLED CAUSE

ON THIS DATE.)
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" STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF C O O K )

!

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

d 1

COUNTY DEPARTMENT - CHANCERY DIVISION

I, JOYCE LEDGER, Official Court Reporter

of the Circuit éqprt of Cook County; County

Depértmen;¥— Chancery Division, do herebxfgertify_
that I reported in stenotype the proceedings had on

this- date, that I fhereafter caused the foregoing .

to be transcribed into typewriting, which I certify

to be a true and accurate transcript.

- & =~ 1 ]
é%illial Court Reporter

084-001292

Dated this \f7L*{Lday
of (i;l%fbb}v 2007.
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